
 

To: James L. App, City Manager 
 
From: Ron Whisenand, Community Development Director 
 
Subject:  Riverside Avenue/24th Street Sidewalks:  Approval of Design Consultant  
 
Date: September 18, 2007 
 
 
Needs: For the City Council to authorize the preparation of construction plans, specifications, and a 

cost estimate for sidewalks and related improvements on the west side of Riverside Avenue, 
between 21st and 24th Streets and on the south side of 24th Street, along the Paso Robles 
Event Center’s (PREC) frontage. 

 
Facts: 1. The Council has allocated a total of about $189,000 from Workforce Housing Reward 

(WFHR) Grant and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds for the 
design and installation of sidewalks and related improvements on the west side of 
Riverside Avenue, between 21st and 24th Streets and on the south side of 24th Street, 
along the Paso Robles Event Center’s frontage. 

. 
 2. The related improvements include decorative street lights, street trees, new retaining 

walls on PREC property, drainage improvements to the PREC Parking Lot, solar-
powered lighting for the PREC Parking Lot, 2 LED-Lighted crosswalks (at the main 
and 21st Street entrances to the PREC), ornamental iron fencing at the PREC Parking 
Lot (to replace the pipe fencing), and landscaping along the 24th Street frontage of the 
PREC (between the retaining wall and the sidewalk).  

 
3.  In July 2007, the City circulated a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the preparation of 

construction plans, specifications, and a cost estimate for this project.  The City received 
five proposals as follows: 
 
RTC (Russ Thompson).......... $  70,300 
RRM Design Group ............... $  77,235 
Cannon Associates.................. $141,480 
Rick Engineering..................... $152,790 
Penfield & Smith .................... $168,000 

 
Analysis and 
Conclusion: It is expected that the total cost of improvements will range between $1.0 and 1.5 million.  

The $189,000 in WFHR and CDBG funds allocated to date will cover the costs of designing 
the project and would allow a limited amount of improvements (e.g. installation of an LED-
lighted crosswalk) to be completed.   

 
The actual construction project was included on the list of potential projects to be 
accomplished with Redevelopment Tax Increment funds (as an alternative to a new City 
Hall) that was presented to the City Council in June 2007 with the Fiscal Year 07/08 Budget.  
That presentation was for the Council’s information only.  Later this year, the Council and 
Redevelopment Agency will be formally asked to consider a schedule of projects to be 
accomplished with Redevelopment Tax Increment funds. 

 
The State Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) has informed the 
City that WFHR funds cannot solely be used for design, but that completion of a 
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construction project will be required.  The construction may consist of a component of the 
total project.  For example, an LED-lighted crosswalk may be installed and satisfy this 
requirement. 

 
Of the 5 proposals, only RRM Design Group’s and Cannon Associates exhibited a 
sufficient level of understanding of the design objectives and general approach to the 
project.  RTC’s proposal, although the least cost, did not provide sufficient information 
explaining their approach to indicate that they understood the nature and scope of the 
project. 
 
RRM’s original proposal (edited to include the key personnel, work program, budget and 
schedule sections) is attached.  In evaluating and clarifying RRM Design Group’s 
proposal, City staff proposed some changes to the scope of work, which would add the 
following amounts to their original proposal: 
 
• Prepare a landscaping plan for the area along 24th Street between 

The sidewalk and the retaining wall (3 submittals) ....................................... $17,760 
 
• Design a drive approach at the Livestock Gate ............................................ $  1,200 
 
• Prepare plans for demolition of existing wall and protection  

of existing buildings at PREC.......................................................................... $  1,600 
 

• Construction administration (responses to Requests for  
Information and preparation of “as-built” plans)......................................... $10,000 

 
The above four additions to the scope would increase RRM Design Group’s total price 
from $77,235 to $107,795. RRM will revise the proposal to incorporate the above 
changes and to update the schedule.  The revisions were not ready in time for the staff 
report deadline. 
 
 

Policy 
Reference: State regulations governing WFHR funds and Federal regulations governing CDBG funds 
 
Fiscal 
Impact: No impact to the General Fund.  The cost of design and installation of the sidewalk and 

related improvements will be borne by WFHR and CDBG funds.   
 
Options: a. Adopt Resolution No. 07-XX authorizing the City Manager to sign an agreement with 

RRM Design Group. 
 
 b. Amend, modify or reject the foregoing option. 
 
 
Attachments:  
1. Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Sign an Agreement with RRM Design Group 
2. RRM’s Original Proposal  
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 RESOLUTION NO. 07-XX  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PASO ROBLES 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN A CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT  

WITH RRM DESIGN GROUP FOR DESIGN OF SIDEWALKS AND RELATED IMPROVEMENTS 
IN RIVERSIDE AVENUE AND 24TH STREETS 

  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has allocated a total of almost $189,000 in Workforce Housing Reward Grant 
(WFHR) and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds for the design and construction of 
sidewalks and related improvements on the west side of Riverside Avenue, between 21st and 24th Streets 
and on the south side of 24th Street, along the Paso Robles Event Center’s (PREC) frontage (“the 
Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the related improvements include decorative street lights, street trees, new retaining walls on 
PREC property, drainage improvements to the PREC Parking Lot, solar-powered lighting for the PREC 
Parking Lot, 2 LED-Lighted crosswalks (at the main and 21st Street entrances to the PREC), ornamental 
iron fencing at the PREC parking lot (to replace the pipe fencing), and landscaping along the 24th Street 
frontage of the PREC (between the retaining wall and the sidewalk); and 
 
WHEREAS, in July 2007, the City solicited proposals for the Project and, on August 13, 2007 received five 
proposals as follows (engineering firm and price): 
 

RTC (Russ Thompson)..................$  70,300 
RRM Design Group .......................$  77,235 
Cannon Associates..........................$141,480 
Rick Engineering.............................$152,790 
Penfield & Smith.............................$168,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, of the five proposals received, only RRM Design Group’s and Cannon Associates’ exhibited 
a sufficient level of understanding of the City’s desires and general approach to the project; and  
 
WHEREAS, at the request of the City, RRM Design Group has agreed to expand the scope of work to 
include the items listed below for the prices indicated: 
 

• Prepare a landscaping plan for the area along 24th Street between the  
sidewalk and the retaining wall (3 submittals)...................................................................... $17,760 

 
• Design a drive approach at the Livestock Gate................................................................... $  1,200 
 
• Prepare plans for demolition of existing wall and protection  

of existing buildings at PREC................................................................................................. $  1,600 
 

• Construction administration (responses to Requests for  
Information and preparation of “as-built” plans) ............................................................... $10,000 

 
The above three additions to the scope would increase RRM Design Group’s total price from 
$77,235 to $107,795; and 
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NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of El Paso de Robles 
as follows: 
 
SECTION 1   To engage the professional services of RRM Design Group to prepare construction plans, 
specifications, a cost estimate, and “as-built” plans for   
 
SECTION 2   To authorize the City Manager to sign a consultant services agreement with RRM Design 
Group in the amount not-to-exceed $108,000, on behalf of the City. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Paso Robles this 18th day of September 
2007 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:  
 

 
 ____________________________________  
 Frank R. Mecham, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Deborah D. Robinson, Deputy City Clerk 
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